EntwicklerCamp 2012

Table of Contents

Lab objectives	3
Time estimate	3
Prerequisites	3
Getting started	3
Setting up the device emulator	3
Greenhouse applications	14
Installing native/hybrid (client-side) applications	15
Configuring hosts file	21
Installing apps from the Android Market	29
Summary	29
End of exercise	29

Lab objectives

The purpose of this lab is to install and configure an Android emulator to be able to access server-side mobile applications and for the purpose of installing clientside mobile applications

Time estimate

You should be able to complete the lab in around 45 minutes.

Prerequisites

Appropriate Skill Level:

• No prerequisite skills required

Computer Specification:

- Linux or Windows O/S
- 500Mb free disk space
- At least 3Gb of memory (the emulator may work with less but they will be extremely slow)
- (optional) Lotus Greenhouse ID
- Internet connectivity

Getting started

This lab includes the following:

- · Installing and configuring the Android device emulator
- Accessing server-side mobile applications
- Installing client-side mobile applications

Setting up the device emulator

The latest version of the Android SDK tools can be downloaded from the following URL

http://developer.android.com/sdk/index.html

However, your moderator will provide you with the install files required for SDK R16.

Note that even though a Java Runtime Environment (JRE) should be enough to

run the Android emulator, you will not be able to start the SDK Manager if you don't have a Java Development Kit (JDK).

You are recommended to install one from here, but your moderator will also provide a local copy:

http://www.oracle.com/technetwork/java/javase/downloads/index.html

Comput	ter 🕨 Local Disk (C:) 🕨 Code 🕨 androi	d-sdk_rll-windows android- 	sdk-windows	▼ ♦ 7
Organize 👻 📷 Oper	n Burn New folder		137	
🔆 Favorites	Name	Date modified	Туре	Size
🧮 Desktop	🌗 add-ons	5/5/2011 3:56 PM	File folder	
🚺 Downloads	🔰 platforms	5/5/2011 3:56 PM	File folder	
🔠 Recent Places	tools	9/22/2011 7:18 AM	File folder	
	🟺 SDK Manager	9/22/2011 7:18 AM	Application	354 KB
🔁 Libraries	SUK Readme	9/22/2011 7:18 AM	Text Document	2 KB

1. Unzip the toolkit file and run the **SDK Manager** application

- 2. The program will search for updated packages to install. To save on disk space, it is advisable to just install the platforms that you really need. For example, this lab has been tested by installing the following additions
- GALAXY Tab Addon
- SDK Platform Android 2.2, API8, revision 3 (required version for using the GALAXY Tab Addon)
- Android SDK Platform-tools, (revision 7) required for some of the device manipulation we will explore later in the lab)

The Later	
Installed packages	SDK Location: C:\Documents and Settings\Administrator\Desktop\Android\android-sdk-w
Available packages	Installed packages
Settings	X Android SDK Tools, revision 11
1 About	Android SDK Platform-tools, revision 7
	👾 SDK Platform Android 2.2, API 8, revision 3
	GALAXY Tab Addon by Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd., Android API 8, revision 1

Note that you do not need to use the GALAXY Tab UI, or any other – but it does have the look and feel of a real phone rather than the default UI for the Android emulator as seen from the pictures below.



3. In the SDK Manager, select **Virtual devices** from the navigator and then click **New**

Virtual devices	List of existing And	droid Virtual Devices located at C:\	\Users\Administrator\.an	droid\avd	
Available packages	AVD Name	Target Name	Platform	API Level	New
Settings About		No AVD available			Edit
					Delete
					Repair.,
					Details
					Start
					Refresh

4. Enter a name for your virtual device and select the target.



- 5. If you want to install any applications locally you will probably need to add an SDcard but, when selecting the size of the card, be aware that the full disk space is pre-allocated in the virtual image file. To complete this lab, please select a **20Mb** SD card.
- 6. Snapshots can be useful to allow you to pre-configure the virtual device with applications or settings and have the image immediately start with these available. This considerably speeds up the time to launch the emulator which can take several minutes, the first time it is loaded.

Name:	GalaxyTab		
Target:	GALAXY Tab Addon (Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd.) - API Level 8		
SD Card:	-		
	Size: 20		MiB 🔻
	🔘 File:		Browse.
Snapshot:			
	🔽 Enabled		
Skin:	11		
	OBuilt-in:	Default (GALAXY Tab)	
	Develution		.f

7. The hardware section shows the main default settings for the device you have selected and you can change these values if you need to. One value that is available but not shown by default is the device RAM size and it is advisable to add this.

Δh	stracted I CD density	240	
			×
Property:	Device ram size	•	
Type:	Cache partition supp	port	
Description	Keyboard lid suppor	τ	e in menshute
Description	Device ram size		e, in megabyte
	GSM modem suppo	rt -	
		OK	Cancel

8. Note that when added the value is set to 0 so you will want to change this to something more appropriate!

Property	Value	^ New
Accelerometer	yes	
Max VM application hea	24	
hw.gyroscope (Unknown)	yes	
Device ram size	512	
Camera support	yes	*

9. When you have finished configuring the device, click Create AVD

	Max VM application hea hw.gvroscope (Unknown)	24 ves	
	Device ram size	512	T
and the second second			
Over	ide the existing AVD with the san	00000	
Over	ide the existing AVD with the san	ne name	
Overi	ide the existing AVD with the san	ne name	
Over	ide the existing AVD with the san	ne name	
Over	ide the existing AVD with the san	ne name	

10. You should then see your device in the list.

Installed packages	List of existing An	droid Virtual Devices located at C:\l	Jsers\Admii	nistrator\.and	lroid\avd
Available packages	AVD Name	Target Name	Platform	API Level	New
ettings About	🗸 GalaxyTab	GALAXY Tab Addon (Samsun	2.2	8	Edit
					Delete
					Repair
					Details
					Start
					Refresh

Note that, by default, the physical file that represents your virtual device is stored in the user's directory on the local machine eg: on Windows 7

c:\Users\Administrator\.android\avd\GalaxyTab.avd and not in the SDK directory.

- 11. Select your device in the list and click **Start**.
- 12. When prompted you can select to scale the screen size. The default (3 inches) is rather small so you will probably want to increase this.
- 13. You can also choose whether to launch from a snapshot (if you already have one) and/or save to a snapshot when you finish using the device.

Laur	ich Options 🛛 🛛 🔀
Skin:	GALAXY Tab (600x1024)
Dens	sity: High (240)
₽s	cale display to real size
	Screen Size (in)
	Monitor dpi: 96 ?
	Scale: 0.49
	/ipe user data
	aunch from snapshot
	ave to spanshot
	Launch Cancel

14. Check the box to **Save to snapshot**. Note that you can override your choice to save / not to save a snapshot later, using some of the command-line tools.

The device emulator can take more than a minute to start up but eventually you should get a screen like this.



15. As you are able to type into the Android device from your computer keyboard, it can be helpful (and improve performance) if you disable the Android soft keyboard. To do this select the App launcher



16. Then select **Settings** from the applications screen.



17. Scroll down the list (click and drag with the mouse) until you find the **Language & keyboard** option.



18. Deselect Android keyboard



19. Scroll further down the list and click on Device keyboard



20. Disable all three options here



21. Click the **Return** button (at the bottom of the screen) three times to return to the Applications screen.



22. Click on the browser icon and type in the URL for IBM.com

http://www.ibm.com

Notice that the site recognizes that it is being accessed by a mobile device and switches to the mobile interface.



23. When you have finished exploring the basic functionality of the device emulator, click on the **X** in the top right corner to close it.



Note that, because you selected to save as a snapshot, the device will take a while to close down. However, the next time you start the device (and choose to start from the snapshot) it will retain all of the settings you configured.

Important for further integration with Eclipse:

Add the android-sdk-<os>/tools directory to your PATH variable:

-		
E	dit System Variab	le
	Variable pamer	Path
	valiable <u>n</u> ame.	Faul
	Variable value:	bin:C:\install\android-sdk_r06-windows\and

Greenhouse applications

The following Android mobile applications can be accessed on and/or installed from the Greenhouse servers from these URLs.

	Web (server-side) app – access from	Native (client-side) / Hybrid app – download from
iNotes	http://greenhouse.lotus.com/mymail	
Traveler		http://traveler.lotus.com
Connections	http://greenhouse.lotus.com/mobile	Download apk file from
		http://9.180.24.234/com.ibm.lotus.con nections.mobile_v3.0.1.apk
		then configure for http://greenhouse.lotus.com/mobile
Sametime IM		Download apk file from http://9.180.24.234/AndroidSametime .apk
		then configure for ?? <awaiting from<br="" information="">greenhouse></awaiting>

For more information on the specific steps on installing an application see the next section.

Installing native/hybrid (client-side) applications

For an example of how to install a native/hybrid application on the Android emulator follow these steps to use the Greenhouse site to install Traveler for Android.

1. Start your virtual device from the SDK Manager and select to Launch from snapshot as well as Save to snapshot.

Launch	Options	X
Skin: Densi V Sc	GALAXY Tab (ty: High (240) ale display to real	600×1024) size
	Screen Size (in): Monitor dpi: Scale:	6 96 ? 0.49
W	ipe user data	_
▼ La	unch from snapsh ve to snapshot	iot
	Launch	Cancel

Note that the device starts more quickly than the first time and takes you wherever you were on the device at the time you closed it down.

2. In the Android's browser, type in the URL http://traveler.lotus.com and click the arrow.



If the device can connect to the server, a Login screen should be displayed.



3. Enter your Greenhouse credentials and click **Sign In** and the Traveler Home Page will be displayed showing that your device has been correctly identified as an Android device.

	A https://traveler.lotus.com/servl Deter Traveler IBM. User Status (Karen.Brent/Lotus) Lotus Notes Traveler server is available. No devices have synchronized for CN=Karen.Brent/O=Lotus.			Fi 📶 😅	10:58 AN
Lotus, Traveler IBM. User Status (Karen.Brent/Lotus) Lotus Notes Traveler server is available.	Lotus: Traveler IBM. User Status (Karen.Brent/Lotus) Lotus Notes Traveler server is available. No devices have synchronized for CN=Karen.Brent/O=Lotus.	🔟 🔒 https://	/traveler.lotu	s.com/servl	
User Status (Karen.Brent/Lotus) Lotus Notes Traveler server is available.	User Status (Karen.Brent/Lotus) Lotus Notes Traveler server is available. No devices have synchronized for CN=Karen.Brent/O=Lotus.	Lotus. Traveler	IBM.		
Lotus Notes Traveler server is available.	Lotus Notes Traveler server is available. No devices have synchronized for CN=Karen.Brent/O=Lotus.	User Status	(Karen.Bre	nt/Lotus)	
	No devices have synchronized for CN=Karen.Brent/O=Lotus.				
Configure your Android		Lotus Notes Trave No devices have s Configure yo	ler server is avai ynchronized for <mark>our Androic</mark>	lable. CN=Karen.Brent/O 	=Lotus.

Note that if for some reason the automatic identification was wrong, you could select your correct device type from other links on this page.

- 4. Click on the "Configure your Android" link
- 5. The message "Starting download" will appear briefly and then an icon will appear at the top of the device.



6. Click on the icon and drag to the bottom of the screen and the Notifications window should stay open.

Aug	ust 2, 2011	🖫 📶 🥶 11:52 ам
	Android	Clear
	Notifications	
	LotusTraveler.apk	11:51 AM
Co	nfigure your Android	
Your this Mob Dow 6.5. Gene	device has been automatically identi identification is incorrect, you need to ile Installer or generate an Apple Pro nload IBM Lotus Mobile Installer for i nload IBM Lotus Mobile Installer for i erate an Apple Profile.	fied as an Android, but if o download IBM Lotus file for your device. <u>Nokia Symbian^3/Series</u> Windows Mobile 6.0/6.1/
Ma	nage Security	

7. A page will display prompting you to install the application. Before installing the application check the warning messages explaining the effects this application will have.



- 8. Click Install.
- 9. When the installation is complete, click **Open** and you will be prompted to enter your credentials.

Lotus Traveler	📆 📶 🥶 9:23 AM
🚺 Lotus Trave	ler
Server:	
https://traveler.lotus.co	om/servlet/traveler
User name:	7
Password:	
Next	Cancel

10. Enter these and then click Next again and you will be prompted to activate the device administrator.



- 11. Click Activate
- 12. The next screen allows you to configure which items you want to synchronise and where you want Traveler to store its data.



- 13. Leave the defaults and click Finish
- 14. Click **OK** on the Status message.
- 15. Click on the Home button at the bottom of the screen.



16. Click the **Applications Launcher** icon at the bottom of the screen .to see the Traveler applications.



17. Close the emulator.

Configuring hosts file

Unfortunately the Android device emulator does not make use of the computer's hosts file for resolving hostnames, so if you are trying to access a site that is not in DNS, the simplest option is to use the IP address of the site rather than the hostname. Note that if you want to access applications on your local machine, the Android device does not use the usual loopback address (127.0.0.1) but uses a reserved IP address (10.0.2.2)

Unfortunately there are situations where the IP address is not appropriate for accessing an application. For example, although you can login to a Connections server using the IP address, links to subsequent Connections components will typically generate fully qualified hostnames which will fail to resolve unless the hostnames are in DNS.

The Android emulator does have an internal hosts file which can be edited, but this appears to be quite a complicated process. This section of the lab explains how you can edit this file. (This information was gleaned from several different posts on Android forums and may not be the only, or the simplest, way to achieve this – but it worked for me!)

- 1. Use the SDK Manager to create a new virtual device with the desired settings. Make sure that snapshots are enabled and that you have allocated an appropriate value to device RAM size and added an SD card if you wish but do not start the emulator from the SDK Manager.
- 2. From a command prompt, change to the **tools** subdirectory of the main SDK directory and type the following command

emulator -avd <avd name> -scale <scale> -partition-size 128
where:

- <avd name> is the name you gave to the virtual device you created
- <scale> is the size of the virtual device (on the screen) compared with the size of the real device (for the Galaxy Tab, a scale of **0.5** works well, for other devices you may need to experiment)
- setting the partition size to 128, increases the size of the system partition on the device which is where the hosts file is stored. By default there is no spare space on this partition so you need to increase the size in order to be able to add entries to the hosts file. (Unfortunately this isn't currently one of the settings you can select from the SDK Manager)

The emulator should then start up

- 3. When the emulator has started, open another command window and change to the **platform-tools** subdirectory of the main SDK directory. Note: this is only available after you have installed the Android SDK Platform-tools, revision 6 package.
- 4. Type the following command

adb shell

This command opens communication with the virtual device

5. At the # prompt type

df

This command shows the free disk on the virtual device partitions. You can see that the system partition has free space.

df df /dev: 258224K total, 0K used, 258224K available (block size 4096) /mnt/asec: 258224K total, 0K used, 259224K available (block size 4096) /system: 127104K total, 80044K used, 47060K available (block size 4096) /data: 127104K total, 26084K used, 101020K available (block size 4096) /cache: 65536K total, 1156K used, 64380K available (block size 4096) /mnt/sdcard: 20146K total, 1K used, 20144K available (block size 512) /mnt/secure/asec: 20146K total, 1K used, 20144K available (block size 512)

6. At the # prompt type

mount

```
# mount
mount
rootfs / rootfs ro 0 0
tmpfs /dev tmpfs rw,mode=755 0 0
devpts /dev/pts devpts rw,mode=600 0 0
proc /proc proc rw 0 0
sysfs /sys sysfs rw 0 0
none /acct cgroup rw,cpuacct 0 0
tmpfs /mnt/asec tmpfs rw,mode=755,gid=1000 0 0
none /dev/cpuctl cgroup rw,cpu 0 0
/dev/block/mtdblock0 /system yaffs? ro 0 0
/dev/block/mtdblock1 /data yaffs2 rw,mosuid,nodev 0 0
/dev/block/mtdblock2 /cache yaffs2 rw,mosuid,nodev 0 0
/dev/block/mtdblock2 /cache yaffs2 rw,nosuid,nodev 0 0
/dev/block/wtdblock2 /cache set of the two distributions and the two distribution
```

This command shows which partitions are read-only and which are read-write. Note that the system partition is read-only. By default you are not able to edit files on the system partition.

7. At the # prompt type

mount -o remount rw /system

This command will remount the system partition as a read-write partition so that we can edit the hosts file.

8. At the # prompt type

mount

9. Check that the system partition is now read-write



10. At the # prompt type

exit

11. In the same command window, change to the **tools** directory within the Android SDK and launch the **ddms** application (Dalvik Debug monitor)

This application contains a File Explorer which allows you to navigate to files held on the virtual device.





- 13. Navigate to the **system > etc** directory and note the size of the **hosts** file.
- 14. Select the **hosts** file and click the icon to pull the file from the device onto your computer.

				~
Name	Size	Date	Time	
data		2011-09-29	11:09	
⊳ 🕅 mnt		2011-09-29	11:06	
a 🛅 system		2010-10-04	15:44	
o app		2010-10-04	15:45	
bin		2010-10-04	15:42	
build.prop	1670	2010-10-04	15:42	
a 🛅 etc		2010-10-04	15:45	
■ NOTICE.html.gz	57868	2010-10-04	15:45	
apns-conf.xml	1471	2010-07-09	01:40	
🗎 dbus.conf	935	2010-07-09	01:42	Ξ
dhcpcd		2010-10-04	15:42	
event-log-tags	10801	2010-10-04	15:42	
hosts	25	2010-07-09	01:42	
init.goldfish.sh	1200	2010-07-09	01:42	
permissions		2010-10-04	15:42	
P b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b		2010-10-04	15:42	
pvplayer.cfg	473	2010-07-09	01:40	
b ecurity		2010-10-04	15:42	
🖹 vold.fstab	1093	2010-07-09	01:42	
- fants		2010 10 04	15.42	-



15. Save the folder into an empty directory and then make a copy of the file.

It is very easy to corrupt the hosts file, particularly when using Windows editors, so it is advisable to make a copy of this file before editing it. You can only tell that the file is corrupted when you attempt to use the hostname on the device and it does not resolve.

Use the following hints to help prevent corrupting the file.

- Copy and paste the original host entry (complete with invisible new line character) and edit the characters and numbers only leaving the valid formatting (tab characters etc).
- Don't use backspace or the Enter/Return key just use delete to remove the characters you don't need.
- If you want a host entry for the local computer, use the IP address 10.0.2.2
- At the bottom of the file make sure that the cursor ends on an empty line below the last host entry (which it should if you copied the new line character as well as the original hosts entry).
- Try to avoid multiple edits and saves of the file it often introduces corruption.
- 16. Edit the original file to add in the required hosts entries.
- 17. When you have saved the local copy of the hosts file, return the DDMS File Explorer.

18. Ensure that you still have the hosts file selected and click the icon to push a file onto the device.

	-			×
- B				
Name	Size	Date	Time	
👂 🧰 data		2011-09-29	11:09	
mnt		2011-09-29	11:06	
a 🛅 system		2010-10-04	15:44	
> 🧰 app		2010-10-04	15:45	
bin		2010-10-04	15:42	
build.prop	1670	2010-10-04	15:42	
a 🛅 etc		2010-10-04	15:45	
NOTICE.html.gz	57868	2010-10-04	15:45	
apns-conf.xml	1471	2010-07-09	01:40	
dbus.conf	935	2010-07-09	01:42	Ε
dhcpcd		2010-10-04	15:42	
event-log-tags	10801	2010-10-04	15:42	
hosts	25	2010-07-09	01:42	
init.goldfish.sh	1200	2010-07-09	01:42	
- · ·			45.40	

19. Select the local copy of the hosts file that you edited and click **Open**.

🗸 🗸 🗸 🗸 🗸	5	← ← Search	AVD Hosts
Organize 🔻 New folde	r		:= • 🔟 🔞
🔆 Favorites	Name	Date modified	Туре
Nesktop	hosts	9/29/2011 12:00	PM File
bownloads	hosts - Copy	9/29/2011 11:55 /	AM File
E Libraries Documents Music Pictures Videos			

20. Ensure that the size and date of the hosts file have changed

🖹 event-log-tags	10801 2010-10-04	15:42
hosts	54 2011-09-29	16:51
init.goldfish.sh	1200 2010-07-09	01:42
b emissions	2010-10-04	15:42

- 21. Close the File Explorer and the DDMS program.
- 22. (Optional not required for the purposes of this exercise). Make any other changes you want to save in your virtual device (like disabling the keyboard features and installing any applications you need).
- 23. To save the snapshot, open a command window and type

telnet localhost 5554

This connects you to the device.

Note: if you do not appear to have the telnet application, you may need to enable it in the Windows features via the Control Panel.

Windows F	eatures	
Turn Wine To turn a fea	dows features on or off ture on, select its check box. To tu filled box means that only part of	rn a feature off, clear its
Sin Sin Sin Sur Ta	mple Network Management Proto mple TCPIP services (i.e. echo, day bsystem for UNIX-based Applicati blet PC Components Inet Client	col (SNMP) time etc) ons
	TP Client	

24. Type in the command

avd snapshot save <snapshotname>



This will create a named snapshot (in this case "firstboot") which you can call when loading the virtual device from a command line. This process may take a few minutes but the disk activity should reassure you that it is still working! When the snapshot save has completed the window will display "OK"



25. In the same command window type

kill

This will close the device emulator and the telnet session without trying to overwrite your snapshot with another one.



26. In order to start the emulator with the configuration you have saved you can launch the emulator with the following command.

```
emulator -avd <avd name> -scale <scale> -snapshot
<snapshotname>
```

The above command line can be entered in a batch file so that you don't have to start the SDK manager in order to start the emulator. Note that snapshots can take up a lot of disk space. If you don't want a further snapshot to be taken when you exit the device you can append

```
-no-snapshot-save
```

to the above command line.

27. Open the browser on the Android device and type in

http://<alias you set in hostfile>

28. If the alias can resolve correctly you should see the home page of the Domino server.



Installing apps from the Android Market

There is no Android Market app on the emulator and you are not able to download apps directly from the Android Marketplace (http://market.android.com) to the Android emulator unless you have first downloaded something to the device from the Android Market app!

An article here suggest that it is possible to get the Android Market app onto the emulator but the steps are rather complicated.

http://www.tech-recipes.com/rx/10004/accessing-android-market-from-android-sdk/

Summary

In this lab, you installed and configured the Android emulator supplied with the Android SDK and familiarised yourself with how to install applications and connect to both production and non-production application servers.

End of exercise